# SECOND AMENDED BYLAWS OF THE LANDING ON LAKE LIVINGSTON

# COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.

# \* \* \* \* \* ARTICLE I

#### Offices

Section 1. The principal office of the corporation shall be located at The Community Building. Stu Stockett Park, in The Landing on Lake Livingston Subdivision, in Trinity County, Texas.

Section 2. The Association shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Texas, a registered office as required by the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act. The address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

#### ARTICLE II

## Board of Directors

Section 1. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by its Board of Directors. Directors need not be residents of Trinity County, Texas, but must be members of the Association.

Section 2. The number of directors shall be nine, if available. The number of directors may be increased or decreased from time to time by amendment to these bylaws, but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. A director must be a property owner in the Landing on Lake Livingston Subdivision, Trinity County, Texas, and must not be delinquent in payment of any maintenance fee or other fees due as required by Article VI, of these bylaws. Exection to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballet. At such election the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Article of Incorporation. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

Section 3. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or more members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the members, to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may only be made from among members.

Section 4. At each annual meeting the members shall elect three directors, if available, for a term of three years. In no case shall the total number of directors be fewer than seven. Each director shall hold office for the term for which he is elected and until his successor shall be elected and shall qualify.

Section 5. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly without other notice than this bylaw at the registered office of the Association, or such other location at which the members conduct their annual meeting. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Board without other notice than such resolution.

Section 6. Special meetings of the Board of directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may fix the place and time for holding any special meetings of the Board called by them.

Section 7. Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given personally to each director at his address as shown by the records of the Association at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance, except in time of emergency and/or natural disaster. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these Bylaws.

Section 8. Quorum. A majority of the Board of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board; and if less than a majority of directors are present at said meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting without further notice.

Section 9. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

Section 10. Removal. Any director may be removed by the members of the Board of Directors, by a majority vote, with cause, at a special meeting called for that purpose.

Section 11. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, or a vacancy due to an increase in the number of directors, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board of Directors, and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor and until his successor is elected and qualified.

Section 12. Compensation, Directors shall not receive any salaries or compensation for their services.

Section 13. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the directors, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action to be taken, shall be signed by all the directors.

# Officers

Section 1. The officers of the Association shall be the President, one or more Vice-Presidents (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article. Any officers must be members of the Association.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors. If the election of the officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified.

Section 3. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in their judgment the best interests of the Association would be served thereby. Any officer may resign at any time giving written notice to the Board, President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office caused by death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Association and shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. He may sign, with the Secretary, or any other proper officer of the Association authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, checks drawn against the Association, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors, or by these Bylaws, or by statute to some other officer or agent of the Association; and in general he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of directors from time to time.

Section 6. Vice-President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all of the power of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice-President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. He shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association; receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the Association from any source whatever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the Association in such bank, trust company or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII of these Bylaws; and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer, and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, or as required by law; be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Association; and see that the seal of the Association is affixed to all necessary documents, to execute such on behalf of the Association, under its seal, as duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; keep a register of the mailing address of each director, which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Director; and in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 9. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 10. Multiple Offices. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 9.

Second Amended Bylaws of The Landing on Lake Livingston Community Association, Inc.

#### ARTICLE IV Members

Section 1. The Association members will consist only of those individuals who are property owners in THE LANDING ON LAKE LIVINGSTON SUBDIVISION, a subdivision which is located in Trinity County, Texas. A member shall only be entitled to one vote, regardless of the number of lots actually owned. In the event that ownership interests in a lot are held by more than one member of the Association, such members shall exercise their right to vote in such manner as they may among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast for such lot. Only members may serve as directors or officers.

Section 2. The Association may issue such certificate, or cards, or other instruments evidencing membership rights, voting rights or ownership rights, as shall be agreed upon by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Meetings of members shall be held at the registered office of the Association, or at such other place, within or without the State of Texas, as may be stated in the notice of the meeting or in a duly executed waiver of notice thereof.

Section 4. An annual meeting of the members, for the purposes of electing directors, and transacting such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting, shall be held on the third Saturday in October of each year annually, the exact location and time to be set forth in the Notice of Annual Meeting. If in the future a change of annual meeting date is necessary, the Board of Directors may, by majority vote, choose to do so by providing at least fifty (50) days notice to members.

Section 5. Failure to hold the annual meeting at the designated time shall not cause a dissolution of the Association. In the event the Board of Directors fails to call the annual meeting at the designated time, any member may make demand that such meeting be held within a reasonable time, such demand to be made in writing by registered or certified mail directed to any officer of the Association. The annual meeting shall thereafter be called within sixty (60) days following such demand.

Section 6. Special meetings of the members for any purpose or purposes may be called by the President, or any member of the Board of Directors. No other business other than that specified in the notice of the meeting shall be transacted at such special meeting.

Section 7.

(a) Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in cases of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than 10 nor more than 50 days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the President, the Secretary, or the officer or person or persons calling the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears in the records of the Association, with postage thereon prepaid.

(b) Notice may be waived in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice. Such waiver may be executed at any time before or after the holding of such meeting. Attendance at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice, except where the person attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any

business on the basis that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Section 8. Quorum. The presence of one-tenth (1/10) of the members entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the shareholders. If a quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the members, the members entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting. If the required quorum is not present, subsequent meetings may be called subject to the same notice requirement and quorum requirement as at the preceding meeting. No such subsequent meeting shall be held more than sixty (60) days following the preceding meeting.

Section 9. For the purpose of determining members entitled to notice or to vote at any meeting of the members or any subsequent meeting, the record date shall be the date on which notice of the meeting is mailed.

Section 10. At a meeting at which a quorum is present, the vote of the majority of the members in person or represented by proxy shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the question is one upon which the vote of a greater number is required by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. The members present or represented at a meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum.

Section 11. A member may vote either in person or by proxy executed in writing by the member, setting forth such member's designation of his attorney and proxy to act in his behalf at any meeting designated therein. Each such proxy shall be filed with the Treasurer prior to or at the commencement of the meeting at which said proxy is to be used. No proxy shall be valid after eleven (11) months from the date of its execution unless otherwise provided in said proxy.

Second Amended Bylaws of The Landing on Lake Livingston Community Association, Inc. Section 12. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the members of the Association, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the members, may be taken without a meeting if consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject thereof. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the members entitled to vote and may be stated as such in any articles or document filed with the Secretary of State.

#### ARTICLE V

## Authority of Association

Section 1. The Association shall have the authority to exercise those powers and privileges as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation, and shall be bound by, and have the authority to enforce, and amend, any and all restrictions of record concerning THE LANDING ON LAKE LIVINGSTON SUBDIVISION as set forth and filed in the records of the County Clerk of Trinity County, Texas, including but not limited to those set forth in Volume 236, pages 881 et seq; and Volume 308, pages 799, et seq; and any amendments to said restrictions, covenants and rights adopted by the Board of Directors and filed of record with the County Clerk of Trinity County, Texas.

Section 2. The Association shall not have the sole authority to enforce the deed restrictions. The determination of whether to file any lawsuit or take any other action regarding a deed restriction violation is vested in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. Provided, however, that the members of the Association, by majority vote of the members at a regular or special meeting duly called as required by these bylaws, may direct the Board of Directors to file any lawsuit or take any other action regarding a deed restriction violation.

Section 3. The Board of Directors shall have the specific power to:

- (a) Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area and facilities, and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) Suspend the voting rights and right to use of the recreational facilities of a member during any periods in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended, after notice, for infraction of published rules and regulations for the period during which such default or infraction exists and for a period of sixty (60) days after the default is cured.
- (c) Exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration;
- (d) Declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors and
- (e) Employ a manager or managers, an independent contractor or contractors or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.

Section 4. The duties of the board of Directors are to:

- (a) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by one-fourth (1/4) of the members who are entitled to vote.
- (b) Supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;

(c) As more fully provided in the Declaration, to:

- fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30 days in advance of each annual assessment period;
- (2) send written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and
- (3) foreclose the lien against any property for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after due date or to bring an action at law against the owner personally obligated to pay the same.
- (d) Issue, or to cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;
- (e) Procure and maintain adequate general public liability insurance and property damage and fire and extended coverage insurance covering property owned by the Association;

(f) Cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as it may deem appropriate;

- (g) Cause the common areas and boat launch to be maintained, including effecting repairs, replacements and additions thereto.
- (h) Cause the exterior of the dwellings on the Lots to be maintained; and
- (i) Cause the payment of all ad valorem and other property taxes levied on the common areas and boat launch.

Second Amended Bylaws of The Landing on Lake Livingston Community Association

# ARTICLE VI

#### Maintenance Fees

Section 1. The Board of Directors of the Association, by majority vote of a quorum, shall fix the amount of the annual maintenance fee per lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period. This maintenance fee is to be collected for the purpose of maintaining the roads, rights-of-way, parks, recreation acres, and other common areas in The Landing on Lake Livingston Subdivision in Trinity County, Texas. Written notice of the annual assessment shall be sent to every Owner subject thereto.

Section 2. Maintenance Fees shall be payable in full for the then-current calendar year between February 1 and March 31 of each such year. Payments shall be made to "THE LANDING ON LAKE LIVINGSTON

COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC." at P. O. Box 441, Trinity, Texas 75862.

Section 3. Maintenance Fees shall become delinquent if not paid by April 1 in the year such fees are due. Any delinquent fees are subject to interest of ten (10%) percent per annum, or the highest legal rate provided by law if less than ten (10%) percent per annum. The Board of Directors may take such legal action, and enter into settlements thereof, against any member delinquent in payment of Maintenance Fees due and all costs incurred in collecting such fees, including attorneys fees, will be assessed against such delinquent member before the member will be entitled to exercise any voting privileges or other member privileges in the Association.

Section 4. Any member delinquent in payment of any maintenance fee or other fees due on the record date of any meeting, as determined by these Bylaws shall not be entitled to vote at any meeting of the members, whether

annual or special, and shall not be entitled to hold any directorship or office of the Association.

Section 5. No owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by nonuse of the common area or abandonment of his lot. As more fully provided in the declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments which are secured by a continuing lien upon the property against which the assessment is made.

## ARTICLE VII Assessments

Section 1. Each member is obligated to pay to the Association, in addition to the maintenance fees as set forth in the Deed Restrictions, Contracts for Sale, and these Bylaws, special assessments for major street repairs and upkeep of their lots. Such special assessments shall be assessed against such lot owners under the conditions set forth in these Bylaws. Failure to pay the assessments on or before the date of notice shall be treated the same as failure to pay the maintenance fees, as provided by these Bylaws, specifically, but not limited to, Article VI.

Section 2. The Board of Directors may assess the charge of mowing and clean-up of any lot within the subdivision if the owner of said lot fails to mow and clean-up the lot after notice. The Board of Directors shall. upon resolution duly adopted, give the owner of any lot the Board of Directors deems in need of mowing and cleanup, thirty (30) days, upon receipt of notice, within which to mow and clean-up the lots. Such notice shall be by certified mail, return receipt requested to the last address of said lot owner on the membership list of the Association. Notice shall be deemed perfected if the lot owner refuses to accept, or fails to claim, the letter. Assessment fees become delinquent of not paid within thirty (30) days upon receipt, and are subject to the penalties provided for by these Bylaws, specifically, but not limited to, Article VI.

Section 3. The members of the Association, may, by majority vote at a special or annual meeting, make assessments against each lot owner for major street or public utility repairs and/or construction. Notice of any such assessment must be given in the Notice of the meeting. Such assessment question will be governed the same as for

the assessment of maintenance fees as provided by these Bylaws.

Section 4. No lot owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use of any of the facilities or services provided by the Association or by abandonment of his lot.

#### ARTICLE VIII Miscellaneous Provisions

Section 1. Books and Records. The Association shall keep correct and complete books and records of account, and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered or principal office, a record giving the names and addresses of the members of the Association and of the Board of Directors of the Association. All books and records of the Association may be inspected by any member or Director of his agent or attorney for any proper purpose at any reasonable time. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal

office of the Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

Section 2. All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notice or other evidence of indebtedness, issued in the name of the Association shall be signed by two of three designated officers of the Board of Directors of the Association, unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors.

Second Amended Bylaws of The Landing on Lake Livingston Community Association, Inc. Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Association shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Association in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Association, any contributions, gifts, bequests or devises for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the Association, and give written evidence of such contribution, gift, bequest, or devise to such donor.

Section 5. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January of each year and end on the last day of December in each year.

Section 6. The Board of Directors shall provide a corporate seal, which shall be in the form of a circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association.

Section 7. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, or under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, either before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed to be the giving of such notice.

Section 8. Indemnification.

- (a) The Association shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Association) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, employee or agent of another enterprise, against expenses (including attorney's fees), judgement, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association,, and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful.
- (b) The Association shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Association to procure a judgement in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, employee, or agent of another Association, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise against expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of such action if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Association; provided, however, that no indemnification shall be made in respect to any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duty to the Association except to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnify for such expenses which such court shall deem proper.

(c) The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgement, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nole contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association, and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.

- (d) Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he is not entitled to be indemnified by the Association as authorized in this section.
- (e) Indemnification hereunder shall be made only upon a determination in the specific case that indemnification is proper under the substantive standards established hereunder. Such determination shall be made (1) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or even if obtainable a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (3) by members of the Association.
- (f) The Association shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, employee or agent of another Association, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under the provisions of this section.

Section 9. Definitions. When used in these bylaws, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) Association shall mean and refer to The Landing on Lake Livingston Community Association, Inc., its successors and assigns.

(b) Properties shall mean and refer to that certain real property described in the Dedication and Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

(c) Common Area shall mean all real property owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the

Owners.

(d) Lot shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded subdivision map of the Properties with the exception of the Common Area.

(e) Owner shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any Lot which is a part of the Properties, including contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation.

(f) Declarant shall mean and refer to C & B Development Company, a Texas partnership, its successors and assigns if such successors or assigns should acquire more than one undeveloped Lot from the Declarant for the

purpose of development.

(g) Declaration shall mean and refer to the Dedication and Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions applicable to the Properties recorded in Volume 255, Page 175, of the Deed Records of Trinity County, Texas, and any amendments thereto on file with the County Clerk of Trinity County, Texas.

(h) Member shall mean and refer to those persons entitled to membership as provided in the Declaration, Articles of

Incorporation, Bylaws, and amendments thereto.

## Article IX Committees

The Board of Directors shall appoint an Architectural Control Committee, as provided in the Declaration, and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these Bylaws. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purposes.

#### ARTICLE X

#### Amendment to Bylaws

Section 1. These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by a majority of the members entitled to vote, present either in person or by proxy at any annual meeting or any special meeting called for that purpose, where a quorum is present, if at least ten (10) days written notice is given on the intent to alter, amend, or repeal, or adopt new Bylaws at such meeting.

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

The foregoing Second Amended Bylaws of The Landing on Lake Livingston were approved by the Association at its annual meeting held on the / day of /

Marguerite N. Raley, President

ATTEST:

Judish A. Carlson, Secretary

Second Amended Bylaws of

The Landing on Lake Livingston Community Association, Inc.